
  
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
 

SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE 
BOARD OF REGENTS REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, March 24, 2022 
 

Lunch – 12:15 P.M. 
Enoch Kelly Haney Center – Room #204 

 
Business Session 

Enoch Kelly Haney Center – Utterback Ballroom 
1:00 P.M. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS 

 
III. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS 
 
IV. READING AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  
 Regular Meeting January 20, 2022 
 
V. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD  
 

• Financial Report – January 21, 2022 
 

-  E&G and Auxiliary Purchases over $15,000 for January  
▪ Video Reality                                                  $16,560.00             
▪ Gordon Cooper Technology Center   $18,763.00             
▪ Gordon Cooper Technology Center   $25,274.40             
▪ Quant Systems, Inc.                                       $28,249.00             
▪ Waggoners Heating & Air Conditioning, Inc.  $41,938.21             
▪ OMES                                                       $55,259.58             
▪ McGraw Hill Global Education                     $61,823.00             
▪ Textbook Exchange                                      $69,704.13             

 
• Financial Report – February 28, 2022 

 
-  E&G and Auxiliary Purchases over $15,000 for February 

▪ Cengage Learning                                         $ 22,531.44             
▪ Jenzabar                                                      $114,260.00            

 
 

VI. HEARING OF DELEGATIONS 
  

None at the time of filing of the agenda. 
 
 
 

 



Agenda 
SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 
March 24, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
VII. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 
✓ Personnel Update 
✓ Campus Activities 
✓ Legislative Activities 
✓ Class Action Lawsuit 
✓ Upcoming Events 

 
VIII. BUSINESS 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
D. Possible consideration and possible action regarding awarding of Emeritus 

status to Brenda Cates
 

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 
 

  
 

 
E.  Possible consideration and possible action regarding awarding of Emeritus 

status to Carol Hartman 
 

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 
 

  
 

 
C. Consideration and possible action regarding awarding of tenure status to 

Yasminda Choate 
 

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 
 

  
 

 
A.  Review and consider approval bid from Affinity Corporation for repairs to the 

retaining wall at the Softball Complex 
 

Board Action:  Approve/Reject Bid 
 

 
 

  
 

 
B. Consideration and possible action regarding the adoption of a proposed campus 

diversity statement 
 

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 
 

  
 



Agenda 
SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 
March 24, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
F.  Possible consideration and possible action regarding awarding of Emeritus 

status to Susan Walker 
 

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 
 

  
 

 
G.  Possible consideration and possible action regarding awarding of Emeritus 

status to Frank Washington 
 

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
H. Possible Executive Session 
 
 Pursuant to Policy II-4-1 the Board may vote to convene into executive session 

to discuss the employment of the President pursuant to Section 307(b)(1) of the 
Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, 25 O.S.2011, 301-314, “discussing the 
employment, hiring, appointment, promotion, disciplining or resignation of any 
individual salaried public officer or employee”   

  
1. Discussion of letter of retirement from the Vice President for Academic 

Affairs 
 

2. Discussion of letter of resignation from the Vice President for Fiscal Affairs 
 

3. Vote to Return to Open Session 
  

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 
I.  Possible action regarding the position of Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 



Agenda 
SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 
March 24, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Consider approval of the following items: 
 

✓ Degree Program Modification for the Associate in Science in Agriculture 
(234) 

✓ Degree Program Modification for the Associate in Science in Secondary 
Education (235) 

✓ Revised 2021-2022 Holiday Schedule 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 

If you need a disability-related accommodation or wheelchair access information, please contact:  
Office of ADA compliance at 405-382-9216.  Requests should be made by March 23, 2022.  

 
K. Consideration of any matter not known about or which could not have been 

reasonably foreseen prior to the posting of the agenda 
  

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 
J.  Possible action regarding the position of Vice President for Fiscal Affairs 
  

Board Action:  As Appropriate 
 

 



Minutes 
 

SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE  
BOARD OF REGENTS REGULAR MEETING 

January 20, 2022 
 
 
I. Call to Order 
 

The Seminole State College Board of Regents’ regular monthly meeting was called to 
order at 1:00 p.m. in the Utterback Ballroom of the Enoch Kelly Haney Center. 
 

II. Roll Call of Members 
 

Roll call was conducted. Regent Franklin was absent. Regents present were Morgan, 
McQuiston, Pitts, Cain, Hyden and Donaho. 
 

III. Introduction of Guests 
 

President Reynolds introduced administrators and staff present at the meeting.  Special 
recognition was given to members of the Nursing and Health Science Division.  Members 
present included:  Crystal Bray, Julie Mathews, Ann Benson, and Cynthia Tainpeah. 
 

IV. Minutes 
 

There being no additions or corrections to the minutes of the regular meeting held 
December 9, 2021; Regent Donaho made a motion to approve the minutes as written and 
Regent Morgan seconded the motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Pitts, yes; Morgan, yes; 
Cain, yes; Donaho, yes; Hyden, yes; and McQuiston, yes. 
 

V. Communications to the Board 
 
Financial Report – Ms. Kristie Newby, Vice President for Fiscal Affairs, presented a 
review of the College’s revenue and expenses through December 31, 2021.  Regent Cain 
made a motion to approve the Financial Report as presented and Regent Pitts seconded 
the motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Pitts, yes; Morgan, yes; Cain, yes; Donaho, yes; 
Hyden, yes; and McQuiston, yes. 
 
Purchases over $15,000 for December: 

$26,927.41             B & H Construction, LLC  
$31,536.00             Telemedicine Management, Inc. 
$20,570.00             Bytespeed 
$33,347.16             Pearson Education 
                  

VI. Hearing of Delegations 
 

None   
 
 
 

VII. President’s Report 
 



Minutes 
SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 
January 20, 2022 
Page 2 

President Reynolds discussed items under the President’s Report and the Business 
portion of the agenda by utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. (See enclosed copy of the 
PowerPoint presentation) 
 
Covid -19 Update– President Reynolds discussed the campus Covid-19 student and 
faculty/staff positive and quarantine numbers for January. 
 
Personnel Update – President Reynolds informed the Board that Michelle Pruitt was 
hired as a Talent Search Advisor; Julie Green, Human Resource Associate has been 
moved to Professional Staff status and Shannon Kirby has been appointed the GEAR UP 
Parent Coordinator, she was formerly the SSC Bookstore E-Commerce Specialist/B&E 
Office Manager. 
 
Campus Activities – President Reynolds gave the Board members information about the 
following campus activities: 

• The Seminole Chamber of Commerce honored two SSC employees; Sarah 
Ledford, Student Support Services Advisor and Dr. Andrew Davis, Assistant 
Professor of English at the December Forum 

• Amber Martin, Great Western Dining Director was recognized for her service to 
students 

• The Fall Nursing Pinning was held on December 9th 
• The SSC Educational Foundation Reception was held on December 13th and 

approximately $35,000 was raised 
• SSC employees and the PTK students donated to the Angel Tree program 
• Online Degree Programs were expanded to include 9 programs total 
• Dr. Bill Knowles gave an enrollment update 
• Funding was received from the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education for 

the 2022 Summer Academies: Engineering and Construction Management and 
Peek into Engineering 

• Danny Morgan and Larry Smith attended the Chairman Kevin Wallace Pheasant 
Hunt 

• Senator Zac Taylor presented Seminole State College with a citation in honor of 
the College’s 90th anniversary 

• President Reynolds gave an update on the Sports Complex construction 
• The Trojan Baseball Banquet has been cancelled this spring due to Covid 

numbers.  An alternate outside event is scheduled for March 5th 
• Higher Education Day at the Capitol will be held on February 15th 
• The Southeast Oklahoma Legislative Tour at Krebs will be held on March 4th 
• President Reynolds shared a video regarding the SSC Food Pantry   
• President Reynolds presented the Regents with a copy of the 2021 Year in 

Review  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes 
SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 
January 20, 2022 
Page 3 
VIII. Business  
 

Approval of Resolution Supporting Current Restrictions Regarding Guns on 
Campus – President Reynolds presented the Board with a proposed resolution for the 
SSC Board of Regents supporting the current restrictions regarding guns on college 
campuses.  President Reynolds recommended approval.  Regent Hyden made a motion to 
approve the resolution as presented and Regent Morgan seconded this motion.  Roll call 
was as follows:  Pitts, no; Morgan, yes; Cain, yes; Donaho, yes; Hyden, yes; and 
McQuiston, yes.  Motion passes. 
 
Motion to Enter into Executive Session to discuss the Terms of the President’s 
Employment –The Board retired into executive session to discuss the terms of the 
President’s employment.  Regent Morgan made a motion to enter into executive session 
and Regent Pitts seconded this motion. Roll call was as follows:  Pitts, yes; Morgan, yes; 
Cain, yes; Donaho, yes; Hyden, yes; and McQuiston, yes. 
 
Motion to Enter into Open Session – Regent Cain made a motion that the Board go 
back into open session to present a motion on the items discussed in executive session.  
Regent Donaho seconded this motion to enter back into open session.  Roll call was as 
follows:  Pitts, yes; Morgan, yes; Cain, yes; Donaho, yes; Hyden, yes; and McQuiston, 
yes. 
 
Consideration of Terms of Employment of Lana K. Reynolds as President of 
Seminole State College – Regent McQuiston stated that the Board appreciated the 
service of Ms. Reynolds.  Regent Morgan made a motion to rehire Lana K. Reynolds as 
President of Seminole State College by extending her contract but honoring the request 
from President Reynolds to decline a raise.  Regent Hyden seconded this motion.  Roll 
call was as follows:  Pitts, yes; Morgan, yes; Cain, yes; Donaho, yes; Hyden, yes; and 
McQuiston, yes. 
 

IX. Consent Agenda 
 
Regents were presented information concerning one item on the Consent Agenda. 
President Reynolds recommended approval of this item. Regent Pitts made a motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda items and Regent Morgan seconded the motion. Roll call 
was as follows:  Pitts, yes; Morgan, yes; Cain, yes; Donaho, yes; Hyden, yes; and 
McQuiston, yes. 
 
Approval of the following items: 
 

• Ratification of Revisions to the 2022-2023 Academic Calendar 
 

X. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business or discussion the meeting was adjourned at 1:59 p.m. 
 
     
Ray McQuiston, Chair                                    



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

Auxiliary and 
Restricted 

Fund 
 Capital 

Projects Fund 

Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI 

Trust Fund 

Federal 
Restricted 

Fund 
 CARES Act 

Fund 

Capital Assets 
and Long-Term 

Debt Fund  Total All Funds 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Current 3,583,317            754,957             1,298,928$      11,121$         -$            25,586$       (43,038)$        -$                    5,630,871$         
Accounts Receivable, net 3,702,436            1,470,650          -                   -                -              -               -                 -                      5,173,085           
Capital Assets, net -                       -                    -                   -                -              -               -                 16,270,335         16,270,335         

Total Assets 7,285,753            2,225,607          1,298,928        11,121           -              25,586         (43,038)          16,270,335         27,074,292         

Accounts Payable (22,394)                97,286               -                   -                -              -               3,975             -                      78,867                
Other Accrued Expenses -                       -                    -                   11,121           -              -               -                 -                      11,121                
Due To/From  Other Funds (24,203)                79,702               -                   -                5,244           -               (588)               (881,000)             (820,845)            
Unearned Revenue 3,702,436            1,470,650          -                   -                -              -               -                 -                      5,173,085           
Current Portion of Noncurrent Liabilities -                       -                    -                   -                -              -               -                 675,296              675,296              
Premiums -                       -                    -                   -                -              -               -                 582,609              582,609              
Capital Lease Obligations Payable to State Agencies -                       -                    -                   -                -              -               -                 11,633,834         11,633,834         

Total Liabilities 3,655,839            1,647,638          -                   11,121           5,244           -               3,387             12,010,739         17,333,968         

Beginning Net Position 1,936,727            (746,623)           1,382,261        -                (5,244)         17,600         388,847         4,259,596           7,233,164           
Change in Net Position 1,693,188            1,324,593          (83,334)            -                -              7,986           (435,273)        -                      2,507,160           

Ending Net Position 3,629,914            577,969             1,298,928$      -$              (5,244)$       25,586$       (46,426)$        4,259,596$         9,740,324$         

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Net Assets

As of January 31, 2022

Page 1



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

 Auxiliary and 
Restricted Fund 

 Capital Projects 
Fund 

Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI Trust 

Fund 
 Federal 

Restricted Fund 
 CARES Act 

Fund 

Capital Assets 
and Long-Term 

Debt Fund  Total All Funds 
Operating Revenues

Tuition and fees, net 3,605,984$            646,185$             -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     4,252,168$          
Federal grants and contracts 106,561                 2,444,144            -                       -                       -                       -                       3,638,337            -                       6,189,043            
State and private grants and contracts -                         737,521               -                       -                       -                       56,800                 -                       -                       794,321               
Auxiliary enterprise charges: -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Housing -                        505,216             -                     -                     -                      -                     -                     -                     505,216             
Food Service -                         384,969               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       384,969               
Bookstore -                        773,644             -                     -                     -                      -                     -                     -                     773,644             
Student Union -                        650                    -                     -                     -                      -                     -                     -                     650                     
Athletics -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
All other -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Other operating revenues 397,415                 49,558                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       446,973               
Total operating revenues 4,109,959              5,541,887            -                       -                       -                       56,800                 3,638,337            -                       13,346,984          

Operating Expenses
Compensation and benefits 4,202,977              1,509,961            -                       -                       -                       12,481                 123,952               -                       5,849,372            
Contractual services 403,381                 681,777               -                       -                       -                       5,905                   88,694                 -                       1,179,756            
Supplies and materials 168,521                 941,930               161,600               -                       -                       15,295                 49,729                 -                       1,337,073            
Scholarships and fellowships 666,277                 3,595,241            -                       -                       -                       -                       2,433,038            -                       6,694,555            
Communications 38,331                   18,393                 -                       -                       -                       600                      561                      -                       57,885                 
Depreciation -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Utilities 218,188                 62,358                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       280,546               
Other 458,299                 850,024               1,193,056            -                       -                       14,533                 61,174                 -                       2,577,085            

Total Operating Expenses 6,155,974              7,659,683            1,354,656            -                       -                       48,814                 2,757,147            -                       17,976,274          

Operating income (loss) (2,046,014)             (2,117,796)           (1,354,656)           -                       -                       7,986                   881,190               -                       (4,629,290)           

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
State appropriations  3,265,438              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       3,265,438            
Federal grants - non-operating -                         2,322,274            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,322,274            
State grants - non-operating -                         275,354               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       275,354               
Contributions and other nonoperating revenues -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Investment revenue -                         2,061                   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,061                   

Net non-operating revenue (expenses) 3,265,438              2,599,689            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       5,865,128            

Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses and transfers 1,219,424              481,894               (1,354,656)           -                       -                       7,986                   881,190               -                       1,235,838            

Capital appropriations - state -                         -                       1,271,322            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,271,322            
Contributed capital-donated capital asset -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Transfers from (to) 473,764                 842,699               -                       -                       -                       -                       (1,316,463)           -                       -                       

Change in Net Position 1,693,188              1,324,593            (83,334)                -                       -                       7,986                   (435,273)              -                       2,507,160            

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 1,936,727              (746,623)              1,382,261            -                       (5,244)                  17,600                 388,847               4,259,596            7,233,164            

Net Assets, End of Year 3,629,914$           577,969$            1,298,928$         -$                    (5,244)$               25,586$              (46,426)$             4,259,596$         9,740,324$         

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Period July 1 through January 31, 2022

Page 2



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

 Auxiliary and 
Restricted 

Fund 
 Capital 

Projects Fund 

 Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI 

Trust Fund 

 Federal 
Restricted 

Fund 
 CARES Act 

Fund 

Capital 
Assets and 
Long-Term 
Debt Fund 

 Total All 
Funds 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 1,928,333$       (597,101)$        501,261$       (1,636)$          -$               17,600$         388,260$       -$               2,236,717$    

Change in Net Position 1,693,188         1,324,593        (83,334)          -                 -                 7,986             (435,273)        -                 2,507,160      

Changes not providing (using) cash:
Cash provided by issues of debt 881,000         881,000         
Changes in other accruals (38,203)             27,466             12,757           3,975             5,995             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 3,583,317$       754,958$        1,298,928$   11,121$        -$              25,586$        (43,038)$       -$              5,630,872$   

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalants

For the Period July 1 through January 31, 2022

Page 3 



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUE

State Appropriations 364,426$             3,265,438$           4,810,271          2,805,991$           

Tuition 327,769               2,144,572             3,238,082          2,020,563             
Non-Resident Tuition Fees 15,978                 343,792                350,000             218,400                
Remedial Course Fee 1,143                   36,461                  39,400               24,586                  

Tuition 344,890               2,524,824             3,627,482          2,263,549             
STEM Academic Excellence Fee 4,241                   75,650                  124,200             77,501                  
LAH Academic Excellence Fee 1,290                   36,829                  53,700               33,509                  
Bus & Ed Academic Excellence Fee 1,997                   38,727                  66,200               41,309                  
Health Science Academic Excellence Fee 280                      7,928                    15,000               9,360                    
Social Science Academic Excellence Fee 1,470                   37,138                  53,600               33,446                  
Physical Therapist Assistance Fee -                       4,326                    6,600                 4,118                    
Technology Service Fee 9,377                   173,755                276,500             172,536                
Bus And Ind Additional Fees -                       -                        -                        
Nursing Fee 1,818                   48,631                  87,400               54,538                  
Laboratory Fees 2,226                   48,591                  79,900               49,858                  
Medical Lab Tech Fee 240                      3,660                    10,900               6,802                    
Electronic Academic Access Fee 2,377                   54,814                  84,500               52,728                  
Dist Education/Outreach Fee 8,086                   178,017                265,700             165,797                

Academic Course Fees 33,401                 708,066                1,124,200          701,501                

Other Student Fees 19,845                 373,093                538,100             335,774                

Total Tuition and Fees 398,136               3,605,984             5,289,782          3,300,824             

Other Income (6,002)                  503,976                848,762             529,627                

Total Revenue 756,560               7,375,398             10,948,815        6,636,443             

EXPENDITURES

Instruction 317,540               2,548,256             5,095,586          3,042,065             
Research -                       -                        -                    -                        
Public Service -                       -                        -                    -                        
Academic Support 21,984                 204,185                439,314             262,270                
Student Services 77,605                 638,321                1,206,846          720,487                
Institutional Support 200,303               1,018,172             1,993,046          1,189,849             
Physical Plant 204,282               1,080,763             2,115,460          1,262,930             
Scholarships and Tuition Waivers (312)                     666,277                900,000             600,000                

Total Expenditures 821,403               6,155,974             11,750,252        7,077,600             

Total Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (64,843)$              1,219,424$           (801,437)$         (441,158)$             

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Education and General - Statement of Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

BUDGET

Page 4



YEAR
CURRENT TO 

MONTH DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUES
Contractual Food Service 10,312$              384,969$            664,530$            388,750$              
Bookstore 250,711              743,604              960,000              697,920                
Institutional Support 23,967                461,289              679,637              408,462                
Seminole/Roesler Residential Centers 13,962                505,316              1,049,100           584,349                
Student Activities 12,605                237,699              366,267              216,098                

Total Revenues 311,557              2,332,878           3,719,534           2,295,578             

EXPENDITURES
Contractual Food Service 33,863                413,781              617,900              387,423                
Bookstore 261,784              656,492              859,730              610,408                
Institutional Support 195,766              656,361              1,067,800           707,895                
Seminole/Roesler Residential Centers 58,926                425,489              706,448              442,236                
Student Activities 51,953                399,939              767,589              493,560                

Total Expenditures 602,292              2,552,062           4,019,467           2,641,523             

Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (290,735)$         (219,184)$         (299,933)$          (345,945)$            

Seminole State College
Auxiliary Summary Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

BUDGET

Page 5



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Meals revenue 10,312$                   384,589$            662,530$            387,580$          
Other revenue -                          380                     2,000                  1,170                

Total revenue 10,312                     384,969              664,530              388,750            

Travel -                          -                     -                      -                    
Supplies -                          -                     -                      -                    
Miscellaneous Expenditures 1,450                       33,909                42,850                26,867              
Contractual Service 32,413                     379,872              575,000              360,525            
Sponsorships -                          -                     -                      -                    
Advertising -                          -                     -                      -                    
Telephone -                          -                     -                      -                    
Postage -                          -                     50                       31                     
Equipment -                          -                     -                      -                    

Total expenditures 33,863                     413,781              617,900              387,423            

Net profit (loss) (23,551)$                 (28,812)$           46,630$              1,327$             

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Food Service - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

BUDGET

Page 6 



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Sales revenue 250,666            739,107                950,000$       690,650$        
Other revenue 45                     4,497                    10,000.00      7,270$            

Total revenue 250,711            743,604                960,000         697,920          

Purchase For Resale 246,386            570,538                693,872         492,649          

Professional Salaries, F.T. 3,167                24,861                  42,245           29,994            
Classified Salaries, F.T. 3,042                22,212                  38,049           27,015            
Classified Salaries, P.T. -                    1,294                    1,295             919                 
Student Wages -                    -                        5,000             3,550              
Professional Services -                    -                        -                 -                  
Fringe Benefits 3,664                24,531                  45,769           32,496            

Compensation expendiures 9,873                72,899                  132,358         93,974            

Travel -                    -                        1,500             1,065              
Supplies 708                   3,099                    5,000             3,550              
Bookstore Supplies -                    -                        -                 -                  
Miscellaneous Expenditures 348                   523                       1,000             710                 
Contractual Service 4,469                9,376                    24,800           17,608            
Sponsorships -                    -                        -                 -                  
Advertising -                    -                        -                 -                  
Telephone -                    -                        -                 -                  
Postage -                    57                         1,200             852                 
Equipment -                    -                        -                 -                  

Other expenditures 5,525                13,055                  33,500           23,785            
Total expenditures 261,784            656,492                859,730         610,408          

Net profit (loss) (11,073)$          87,112$               100,270$       87,512$         

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Bookstore Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

BUDGET

Page 7



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUE

Student Service Fee 10,212$                  193,595$             298,994$      179,695           
Infrastructure Fee 11,086                    214,891               328,893        197,665           

Student Fees 21,298                    408,486               627,887        377,360           
Other Income-Overpayment -                          30,040                 15,000          9,015               
Refunds / Reimbursements 1,910                      20,924                 35,000          21,035             
Seminar fees -                          -                       -                -                  
Vending maching commissions 509                         1,189                   1,250            751                  
Photocopy revenue -                          -                       -                -                  
Repair and replacemnet, damaged property -                          -                       -                -                  
Haney Center 250                         650                      500               301                  

Other income 2,669                      52,803                 51,750          31,102             

Total Revenue 23,967                    461,289               679,637        408,462           

EXPENDITURES

Professional Salaries, F.T. -                          250                      -                -                  
Classified Salaries, F.T. -                          -                       -                -                  
Classified Salaries, P.T. -                          -                       -                -                  
Student Wages -                          -                       -                -                  
Professional Services 25,264                    124,421               105,000        67,515             
Fringe Benefits -                          72                        -                -                  

Personnel expenditures 25,264                    124,743               105,000        67,515             

Travel -                          366                      9,000            5,787               
Supplies 93                           3,530                   15,000          9,645               
Bookstore Supplies -                          -                       -                -                  
Miscellaneous Expenditures 4,303                      24,469                 32,800          21,090             
Lease Payments -                          -                       -                -                  
Contractual Service -                          -                       -                -                  
Sponsorships -                          -                       -                -                  
Advertising -                          -                       -                -                  
Telephone -                          -                       -                -                  
Postage -                          -                       -                -                  
Equipment -                          -                       -                -                  
Housing and book scholarships 166,106                  503,254               900,000        600,000           
Haney Center -                          -                       6,000            3,858               

Total Expenditures 195,766                  656,361               1,067,800     707,895           

Total Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (171,799)$              (195,071)$           (388,163)$     (299,434)       

Seminole State College
Institutional Support- Statement of Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

ACTUAL BUDGET

Page 8



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Rental revenue - Dorms 12,502$           497,904$         1,044,100$      581,564                
Other revenue 1,460               7,411               5,000               2,785                    

Total revenue 13,962             505,316           1,049,100        584,349                

Professional Salaries, F.T. -                   -                   -                   -                        
Classified Salaries, F.T. -                   -                   -                   -                        
Classified Salaries, P.T. -                   -                   -                   -                        
Student Wages -                   -                   -                   -                        
Professional Services -                   -                   -                   -                        
Fringe Benefits -                   -                   -                   -                        

Personnel expenditures -                   -                   -                   -                        
Travel -                   -                   
Supplies -                   11,982             20,883             13,073                  
Miscellaneous Expenditures 5,215               76,444             90,439             56,615                  
Lease Payments 45,424             272,541           502,126           314,331                
Contractual Service -                   1,709               7,000               4,382                    
Sponsorships -                   -                   -                   -                        
Advertising -                   -                   -                   -                        
Telephone 50                    455                  1,000               626                       
Utilities 8,237               62,358             85,000             53,210                  
Postage -                   -                   -                   -                        
Equipment -                   -                   -                   -                        

Other expenditures 58,926             425,489           706,448           442,236                
Total expenditures 58,926             425,489           706,448           442,236                

Net profit (loss) (44,964)$          79,827$          342,652$        142,112$             

ACTUAL BUDGET

Seminole State College
Housing - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

Page 9



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Student activity fee 11,344$                   213,355$              328,893$         194,047$           
Cultural & recreation fee 1,261                       24,344                  37,374             22,051               
Athletic Administration -                           -                        -                     
Golf-Women -                           -                        -                     
Golf-Men -                           -                        -                     
Womens Soccer -                           -                        -                     
Men's Basketball -                           -                        -                     
Women's Basketball -                           -                        -                     
Volleyball -                           -                        -                     
Baseball -                           -                        -                     
Softball -                           -                        -                     

Total Revenue 12,605                     237,699                366,267           216,098             

Athletic Administration 20,077                     130,089                216,915           139,476             
National Tournaments -                           46,755                  46,756             30,064               
Golf-Women 1,472                       12,934                  29,403             18,906               
Golf-Men 1,119                       12,277                  27,232             17,510               
Womens Soccer 1,471                       31,235                  57,614             37,046               
Men's Basketball 3,146                       21,785                  47,974             30,847               
Women's Basketball 4,477                       20,491                  48,169             30,973               
Volleyball -                           18,037                  37,614             24,186               
Baseball 16,225                     53,510                  126,889           81,590               
Softball 3,967                       46,407                  92,023             59,171               
Student Government -                           1,956                    12,000             7,716                 
Livestock Judging Team -                           -                        10,000             6,430                 
PLC -                           4,464                    15,000             9,645                 
SSC Aggie (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
Phi Theta Kappa (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
NASA (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
Student Nurse Association(AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     

Total Expenditures 51,953                     399,939                767,589           493,560             

Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (39,348)$                 (162,240)$            (401,322)$        (277,462)$         

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Student Activities - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

BUDGET

Page 10



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Revenue Expenditures Net

PELL 1,512,216$             1,310,845$         201,371$             
PELL Recovery 508                         -                      508                      
SEOG 36,750                    36,750                -                       
Direct Loans 773,308                  701,787              71,521                 
Student loan repayment 7,499                      -                      7,499                   
College Work Study 30,324                    30,324                -                       
SSC Foundation 38,176                    39,097                (921)                     
Private Scholarships 300,751                  320,969              (20,218)                
Private Loans 65,812                    -                      65,812                 
Cherokee Student Grants 33,000                    23,000                10,000                 
Shawnee Tribe Student Grants 9,752                      7,502                  2,250                   
Citizen Pottawatomie Stud Grnt 29,205                    20,514                8,691                   
Chickasaw Tribe Stdt Grants 72,127                    59,665                12,462                 
OHLAP 178,854                  176,904              1,950                   
Misc Indial Tribal Grants 49,511                    42,392                7,119                   
Oklahoma Tuition Aid Grant 96,500                    92,000                4,500                   

Subtotal Financial Aid 3,234,293               2,861,749           372,544               
Title III Engaging Students in Science -                          -                      -                       
Ub Math/Science #2 213,479                  169,703              43,775                 
Ub Math/Science #1 203,276                  164,763              38,513                 
Upward Bound #2 207,112                  180,888              26,224                 
Upward Bound #1 284,640                  234,423              50,216                 
Talent Search West 221,890                  169,908              51,982                 
Talent Search Central 287,987                  238,797              49,189                 
Dream Catcher Gear Up 472,023                  426,401              45,622                 
STEM Student Support 146,003                  145,908              95                        
Student Support Serices 167,486                  164,353              3,132                   
NASNTI Grant 196,897                  198,396              (1,499)                  
Carl Perkins 13,029                    3,704                  9,324                   

Subtotal Federal Grants 2,413,820               2,097,245           316,575               
Care Bears 21,336                    12,981                8,354                   
Nursing Student'S 1,519                      1,985                  (466)                     
Residential Deposits 8,660                      -                      8,660                   
Professional Staff Council 1,375                      743                     632                      
Upward Bound #2 Fund Raiser 1,252                      100                     1,152                   
Upward Bound M/S Fund Raiser 68                           700                     (632)                     
Ub Ms #2 Fund Raiser -                          100                     (100)                     
Upward Bound #1 Fundraiser 154                         100                     54                        

Subtoal Other Restricted 34,363                    16,710                17,654                 

Total 5,682,476$            4,975,704$        706,773$            

Seminole State College
Restricted Funds - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

Page 11



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Revenue Expenditures Net

CARE BEARS 21,336$                  12,981$              8,354$                 
FACULTY SENATE 2,275                      100                     2,175                   
SEMINOLE STATE AGGIE CLUB -                          602                     (602)                     
NURSING STUDENTS MAILBOXES 50                           48                       3                          
UB #1 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 3,574                      -                      3,574                   
PHI THETA KAPPA 836                         -                      836                      
UBMS SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 2,883                      -                      2,883                   
UB M/S #2 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 2,276                      -                      2,276                   
UB2 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 1,663                      -                      1,663                   
NURSING STUDENT'S 1,519                      1,985                  (466)                     
MLT BOC FEE 907                         1,075                  (168)                     
RESIDENTIAL DEPOSITS 8,660                      -                      8,660                   
PROFESSIONAL STAFF COUNCIL 1,375                      743                     632                      
CLASSIFIED STAFF ASSOCIATION -                          500                     (500)                     
PSI BETA 70                           -                      70                        
UPWARD BOUND #2 FUND RAISER 1,252                      100                     1,152                   
UPWARD BOUND M/S FUND RAISER 68                           700                     (632)                     
UB MS #2 FUND RAISER -                          100                     (100)                     
UPWARD BOUND #1 FUNDRAISER 154                         100                     54                        
ART CLUB 230                         -                      230                      
SHOTGUN SHOOTING TEAM 7,170                      3,805                  3,365                   

56,318$                 23,339$              32,979$              

Seminole State College
Campus Organizations - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period Ended January 31, 2022

Page 12























































 
 
 
 

PROPOSED DIVERSITY STATEMENT: 
 
 
The Seminole State College community is dedicated to fostering 

a positive campus environment supporting each person’s 

individual and unique ability to learn, regardless of socio-

economic status, race, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, age, 

disability or religious preference, to build an institution of higher 

learning in which diversity is celebrated. 

 

 

Proposed by DE&I Task Force 
February 16, 2022 

 
Approved by the Administrative Countil 

February 28, 2022 
 

 

 

















38 TENURED % 25.0%
9 27

DIV TENURED DIVISION % DENSITY

1 . Bolin, Steven SS August 2006 2011 BE 1 of 7 14%
2 . Browning, Malinda HS August 2008 2011 HS 1 of 9 11%
3 . Cheng, ChunFu (Jeff) BE August 2015 2020 LAH 2 of 7 29%
4 . Christiansen, Jeffrey SS August 2009 2014 STEM 1 of 8 13%
5 . LAH August 2002 2007 SS 4 of 5 80%
6 . Knowles, Christal SS August 2009 2014
7 . McBride, Kelli LAH August 2005 2010
8 . Osby, Marta SS August 2002 2007
9 . Tollett, Jarrod STEM August 2010 2017 TENURED FACULTY

9 of 36 25.0%

NON-TENURED DIV DATE HIRED
1 . Atchley, Lynette LAH January 2021 NON-TENURED FACULTY
2 . Benson, Ann HS January 2022 27 of 36 75.0%
3 . Biddy, Brent STEM January 2022
4 . Brooks, Stephen BE August 2018
5 . Bray, Crystal HS April 2021
6 . Bryant, Melissa STEM August 2011
7 . Carpenter, Emily STEM August 2016
8 . Choate, Yasminda LAH January 2012
9 . Davis, Andrew LAH August 2018

10 . Denton, Sheryl HS August 2020
11 . Flores, Amber BE August 2012
12 . Hankal, Kelly HS August 2016
13 . Hill, Dan BE August 2016
14 . Holejsovsky, Alice HS August 2019
15 . Hudson, Brenda HS August 2021
16 . Jobe, Noble STEM August 2011
17 . Juhasz, Paul LAH August 2021 DIVISION LEGEND
18 . Kasterke, Tammy BE August 2014 BE Business and Education
19 . Lester, Damaila HS August 2020 HS Health Sciences
20 . Miles, Deanna STEM August 2020 LAH Language Arts and Humanities
21 . Rich, Wendy STEM July 2017 STEM Science, Technology, 
22 . Rivera, Sam SS August 2016 Engineering, and Mathematics
23 . Schatzel, Brad BE August 2012 SS Social Sciences
24 . Senaratne, Nilmini STEM August 2018
25 . Stafford, Shakira HS August 2016
26 . Story-Schell, Rita BE August 2000
27 . Streight, Ricky STEM August 2021 Eligible for tenure application.
28 . Tainpeah, Cynthia HS August 2019 Not eligible for tenure.  
29 . Tyler, Robin LAH August 2018
30

TENURED DATE HIRED TENURED

Isaacs, Jessica

SSC Policy: 60% tenure density maximum for all divisions 
combined.

Seminole State College
FACULTY TENURE STATUS

Spring 2022

TOTAL FULL-TIME FACULTY:
  TENURED: NON-TENURED:











Request to award honorary Emeritus status to five former employees: 

SSC Policy on Emeritus status states that the Seminole State College Board of Regents, 
at its discretion, may honor recommendations of the President granting retired faculty, 
administrators, or professional staff members emeritus status after retirement.  In 
evaluating candidates for this honorary status, consideration may be given to length of 
service, special recognitions and activities, and similar items related to performance. 

 

Brenda Cates (1996 – 2016) 
   
Brenda Cates worked for SSC for 20 years.  During her time at the College, she 
served in several capacities, including TRiO Office Manager, Talent Search Advisor 
and Enrollment Management Specialist/High School Recruiter.  She assumed her last 
position in 2014 where she advised students and acted as the Americans with 
Disabilities Act campus liaison.  She earned her bachelor’s degree and her master’s 
degree from East Central University. 

 
Carol Hartman (1988 – 2018)  

  
Carol Hartman started at SSC as the Administrative Assistant to the Vice President 
for Academic Affairs.  She also worked as an Employment Readiness job developer 
and the Business and Industry Training Coordinator.  She served as president for both 
the Classified Staff Association and the Professional Staff Council on campus.  She 
holds an associate degree from Seminole State College, and a bachelor’s degree from 
Mid-America Christian University. 
 

 
Susan Walker (2014 – 2020) 

  
Susan Walker retired in December of 2020.  She worked at SSC for six years, most 
recently as an Assistant Professor of Life Sciences.  She received her bachelor’s 
degree at East Central University and her master’s degree at Oklahoma State 
University.  She resides in Konawa.  She enjoys spending time on her farm, 
completing home projects and taking hiking trips. 
 

Frank Washington (2000 – 2011)  

 
Frank Washington held the position of Educational Talent Search Advisor.  He has 
over 20 years of experience in accessing and advocating for veterans.  Frank served 
as a proud member of the U.S. Army and was recognized as an Outstanding Soldier 
in Advanced Individual Training.  Frank currently serves at the pastor at the 
Cornerstone Baptist Church in Wewoka. 
 



POLICY NUMBER II-4-1 
 

GENERAL POLICIES REGARDING COLLEGE PERSONNEL 
 
 
The President of the College as Chief Executive Officer is hereby delegated authority by the 
Board of Regents for all employment decisions (excluding Vice Presidential positions) regarding 
hiring, assignment of personnel, promotion, designation of duties and job descriptions, 
discipline, termination, or any other personnel actions.  For any position with the title of Vice 
President, Board approval is required prior to hiring or termination. 
 
Seminole State College contracts with regular full-time professional staff and faculty on an 
annual basis.  Except as provided in this policy for tenured faculty, contracting with an employee 
for one year does not imply that the employee will be contracted for any other time period.  Non-
contracted employees, including part-time and classified employees, are employed as needed at 
the will of the President.  Nothing in this policy shall preclude employees from exercising their 
due process rights as outlined in the Policy manual.  
 

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 
 
Seminole State College does not discriminate or permit discrimination by any member of its 
community against any individual based on the individual’s race, color, religion, political beliefs, 
national origin, age (40 or older), sex, sexual orientation, genetic information, gender identity, 
gender expression, disability, or veteran status in matters of admissions, employment, financial 
aid, housing, services in educational programs or activities.  
 
In compliance with and support of the following federal civil right laws:  
 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, 
or national origin (including language).  

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination based on 
disability.  

 Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, which prohibits discrimination based on 
sex in education programs or activities.  

 Age Discrimination Act of 1975, which prohibits discrimination based on age.  
 U.S. Department of Homeland Security regulation 6 C.F.R. Part 19, which prohibits 

discrimination based on religion in social service programs.  
 
College policy prohibits retaliation against a person for filing a complaint of discrimination or 
harassment under this policy or other applicable federal, state, or local laws. This policy also 
prohibits retaliation against any person who assists someone with a complaint of discrimination 
or harassment or who participates in any manner in an investigation or resolution of a complaint 
of discrimination or harassment. 

 
PRESIDENTIAL SEARCH AND SELECTION 

 
In the event of an opening in the position of President, the Chair of the Seminole State College 
Board of Regents has the responsibility and authority to oversee the presidential selection 
process.  The Office of the President, in collaboration with the Faculty Senate Subcommittee on 



Academic Issues, has developed a search and selection process, which may be utilized at the 
discretion of the Board.  The Board may utilize other methods for recruitment and selection of a 
President. 

 
EMPLOYMENT QUALIFICATIONS 

 
Candidates for a teaching position in an academic, transfer-oriented, program should possess an 
appropriate academic degree from an acceptable training institution with prior teaching 
experience highly desirable.  Typically a master’s degree is required for a full-time teaching 
position in a traditional academic area.  A doctoral degree is highly desirable. 
 
In order to be employed in a teaching position in the occupational/technical areas, successful 
candidates must have proven capabilities in the field in which they propose to teach.  Some 
college training, technical certification, and prior teaching experience are desirable. 
 
Candidates for the various administrative positions must have a minimum of a master’s degree or 
possess specialized training and experience.  Experience in teaching or administration is required 
in the positions of Vice President for Academic Affairs, the Vice President for Student Services 
and deans.  It is highly desirable that the candidate holds or be making progress toward a 
doctoral degree. 
Candidates for other positions on campus should have good character, adequate skills for the 
tasks required and appropriate training and/or experience. 

 
APPOINTMENT OF PERSONNEL 

Initial Appointment 
 
Full-Time Faculty, Administrative, and Program Employees  
The President, upon recommendation from appropriate administrative personnel, makes initial 
appointment of regular, full-time faculty, administrative and professional staff. The President is 
also authorized to make temporary appointments as necessary.  
 
Upon employment, the employee must file with the College: 1) a complete résumé which 
identifies all previous employment; 2) official transcripts of all college work and/or appropriate 
certificates; and 3) all other applicable federal and state employment forms.  
 
Responsibilities 
 
Each employee is expected to be knowledgeable of performance criteria for his/her particular 
position and with all rules, procedures, policies, and standards of conduct established.  An 
employee who does not fulfill the responsibilities set out by such may be subject to corrective or 
disciplinary action. 
 
New Employment Probationary Period 
 
Newly hired employees who are not full-time faculty shall be placed in a six-month probationary 
period. Newly hired faculty shall be placed in a probationary period matching the length of their 
initial contract.  The probationary period can be extended if warranted on the recommendation of 
their supervisor(s) and the approval of the President.  If an employee persists in poor 
performance, a supervisor may recommend termination.  
 



During the probationary period, employees serve at the will of the president and are subject to 
dismissal with or without cause at any time without prior notice. Recommendations for 
dismissals shall be recommended to the President for approval. 
 
Upon promotion to a new classification, transfer, or demotion, employees may be placed in a six-
month probationary period to allow the department supervisor a sufficient amount of time to 
measure the efficiency and productivity of the employee.  Such probationary periods do not 
affect an employee’s eligibility for accrual or use of College benefits. 
  
Contract Renewals 
 
The renewal of the President’s contract will be considered at or before the January Board 
Meeting as appropriate, or as specified in the contract between Seminole State College and the 
President.  
 
Tenure is considered a state of continuing employment.  Tenured faculty members are protected 
from dismissal except for sufficient cause, for reasons of financial exigency, or change in 
institutional programs. Unless there is a change in institutional programming or a declaration of 
financial exigency by the Board of Regents of Seminole State College, contracts for tenured 
faculty shall be automatically renewed without written notification.   
 
  Any non-tenured faculty and professional staff members who the College does not intend to 
offer a contract for the coming year will receive notification by April 15th.  For employees who 
will be rehired, salaries, benefits and other conditions of employment may be established by the 
President at a later time, prior to the issuance of contracts, which shall be automatically renewed 
without written notification.  Classified employees are “at will” and serve at the pleasure of the 
president subject to dismissal with or without cause at any time.  Classified staff shall receive 
notification of the conditions of their employment at the beginning of each fiscal year.  
 
Authorization of Emeritus Status  
 
The Seminole State College Board of Regents, at its discretion, may honor recommendations of 
the President granting retired faculty, administrators, or professional staff members emeritus 
status after retirement. In evaluating candidates for this honorary status, consideration may be 
given to length of service, special recognitions and activities, and similar items related to 
performance. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE OF ADOPTION: December 14, 2006 LEGAL REFERENCE: 

REVISION DATE(S): October 27, 2011; October 25, 2012; March 26, 2015; January 18, 
2018; August 15, 2019; January 21, 2020 
 
RELATED ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND REGULATIONS:  
    
    

 







Revised September 2021 
Page 1 of 5 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

Request for Program Modification 
 

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education 
 

 
Institution submitting request: Seminole State College 

Contact person: Dr. Linda Goeller 

Title: VPAA 

Phone number and email address: 405-382-9513, l.goeller@sscok.edu 
 

Current title of degree program (Level II): Associate in Science 

Current title of degree program (Level III): Associate in Science in Agriculture  

State Regent’s three-digit program code:  234 

Degree Granting Academic Unit: STEM 

With approved options in: A. Click here to enter text. 

 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  Check all appropriate types of changes and complete ONLY the 
appropriate page(s).  Excluding program deletions and suspensions, for modifications to 

be considered for State Regents’ approval, the program must be current in the 5-year program 

review cycle. The Degree Program Review schedule can be found at 
http://www.osrhe.edu/oeis/ProductivityReport/RevParams.aspx 
 
Date next review for the program is due: 2022 

☐ (1) Program Deletion 

☐ (2) Program Suspension 

☐ (3) Change of Program Name and/or Degree Designation 

☐ (4) Option Addition 

☐ (5) Option Deletion 

☐ (6) Option Name Change 

☒ (7) Program Requirement Change 

☐ (8) Other Degree Program Modification (non-substantive) 

☐ (9) Program Reinstatement 

☐ (10) This modification affects a Cooperative Agreement Program 

 

Signature of President: _______________________________________ Date: Click here to 
enter a date.  
 
Date of Governing Board Approval: Click here to enter a date. 
 
 

Complete and return ONLY 

this cover sheet AND the 

appropriate page(s) 

specifying the requested 

modification!  

 

NOTE:  Information not 

included in the requested 

modification may cause a 
delay in processing. 

 

http://www.osrhe.edu/oeis/ProductivityReport/RevParams.aspx


Revised September 2021 
Page 2 of 5 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

 
 

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education 

REQUEST FOR PROGRAM MODIFICATION 
(continued) 

 
Institution submitting request:  Seminole State College 
 
Program name and State Regents’ three-digit program code to be modified:   
Agriculture Degree Program Code234 
 
 (7) PROGRAM REQUIREMENT CHANGES 
 
NOTE:  Information not included on the requested action may cause a delay in processing. 
 
 
Select all that apply: 
 
☒ Course requirement change (change in number of core courses, electives, general education, 

etc.  Changes in course prefixes that do not effect content should be reported, but do not 
require approval.) 

 
☐ Degree program requirement change (i.e. prerequisites, minimum GPA for admission or other 

admission criteria changes, graduation criteria change, etc.) 
 
☒ Total credit hours for the degree will NOT change. 
 
☐ Total credit hours for the degree WILL change from ___ to ____. 
Explain: Click here to enter text. 
 
 
Summary of changes (attach no more than one page if space provided is inadequate, as well as the 
form showing the current and proposed curriculum): 
We will remove AGRI 2113 Agricultural Communications as a Major Field Requirement and 

replace with AGRI 1303 Introduction to Wildlife and Natural Resource Management 
(previously a major field elective).  We will also add MATH 1513 to the General Education 
Requirements to be listed along with MATH 1503 and Math 1523. 

 
Number of new courses being added to course catalog/inventory: 0 
 List new courses being added to course catalog/inventory: 0 
Number of courses being deleted from course catalog/inventory: 0 
 List courses being deleted from course catalog/inventory: 0 
 

Reason for requested action (attach no more than one page if space provided is inadequate): 
Transferability has been a concern with AGRI 2113 and will not be with AGRI 1303.  MATH 
1513 is a prerequisite course for those students needing to take PHYS 2114 General Physics and 
possibly other science courses when they transfer.  
 
 
Will requested change require additional funds from the State Regents? ☒No ☐Yes 

(7) Program 
Requirement Change 



Revised September 2021 
Page 3 of 5 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

If yes, please specify the number of the additional costs, the source of the funds, and how they will 
be expended (attach no more than one page if space provided is inadequate). 
Click here to enter text. 
 
Will requested change impact an embedded certificate? ☒No ☐Yes 
If yes, please specify the certificate name and State Regents’ three-digit program code.  A 
modification to the impacted embedded certificate(s) must accompany the modification request to 
the main program. Click here to enter text. 
 
Will requested change affect a Cooperative Agreement?   ☒No ☐Yes  
If yes, a Cooperative Agreement Program Modification Form must be completed and submitted. 
 
For undergraduate degree programs only 
 
As part of the broader work of the Mathematics Success Initiative, the Math Pathways Task Force 
has identified four gateway mathematics courses that are suitable general education mathematics 
course options.  These courses, College Algebra/Pre-Calculus, Introduction to Statistics, 
Functions and Modeling, and Quantitative Reasoning, are included on the Course Equivalency 
Project transfer matrix and provide rigorous mathematical content that is more relevant and 
appropriate for specific academic majors. 
 
Please respond to the following questions: 

 
1. Which mathematics course is required as part of the general education requirements? If the 

program allows for multiple gateway mathematics course options, provide a rationale for 
each. 

Click here to enter text. 
2. Describe how the mathematics course was selected and how it best meets the needs of the 

program’s students. 
Click here to enter text. 

3. How does this mathematics course articulate with your partner institutions? 
Click here to enter text. 
 

(For more information regarding the gateway mathematics courses, please contact Dr. Rachel 
Bates (405) 225-9168) 

 
 



Revised September 2021 
Page 3 of 5 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

CURRICULAR REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
Please either attach current and proposed degree program requirements or use the tables below to list the current 
requirements in the left column and the proposed requirements in the right column (see appendix A for example). 
 
Indicate the changes clearly.  Note any courses deleted from the course catalog/inventory.  Asterisk any courses 
new to the course catalog/inventory.
 

Current Curriculum 
PREFIX 

AND 
COURSE # 

COURSE TITLE CR. 
HRS. 

AGRI 2113 Agricultural Communications 3    
   

MATH 
1503 OR 
MATH 
1523 

Elementary Statistics OR Pre-Calc 
for Bus-Bio 

3 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Total credit hours 6 

Add additional rows as necessary 

 

Proposed Curriculum 
PREFIX 

AND 
COURSE # 

COURSE TITLE CR.  
HRS. 

AGRI 1303 Intro to Wildlife and Natural 
Resource Management 

3 
   
   

MATH 1503 
OR 
MATH 1523 
OR MATH 
1513 

Elementary Statistics OR Pre-Calc 
for Bus-Bio OR Pre-Calc Eng-
Phys-CS 

3 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Total credit hours 6 
Add additional rows as necessary



Revised September 2021 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

 



 

1 

2021-22 SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE CATALOG SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY, ENGINEERING, AND MATHEMATICS DIVISION 

Agriculture 
Associate in Science 

 
Degree Program Mentor 
For additional information regarding this 

degree, contact the Degree Program Mentor. 

 

Wendy Rich 
Assistant Professor 

405-382-9211 

w.rich@sscok.edu 

Division Office: 405-382-9266 

 

 

Program Objective 
The objective of the Agriculture Associate in 

Science is to prepare students for transfer to a 

bachelor’s degree granting institution to 

major in an agricultural field. 

 

 

Requirements for Graduation 
1. At least sixty-two designated semester 

credit hours. 
2. Grade of "C" or better required in all 

Major Field Requirement courses. 

3. Grade Point Average of 2.0 or better. 
4. Fifteen semester credit hours in attendance 

at SSC. 
5. Completion of Graduate Exit Survey. 
 
 
Please Note: Consult with advisor for 
specific transfer requirements.  General 
Education and Major Field requirements vary 
between universities. 
 
 
Transfer Note:  A statewide transfer 
agreement guarantees students transferring to 
an Oklahoma public four-year university 
with an associate in arts or associate in 
science degree the associate degree will 
satisfy all freshman and sophomore general 
education requirements at the four-year 
university. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
General Education Requirements ............................................................................  31 
 GOV 1113 American National Government ........................... 3 

 HIST 1483 American History to 1877 or 

 HIST 1493 American History since 1877 ................................ 3 

 ENG 1113 Composition I ....................................................... 3 

 ENG 1213 Composition II ...................................................... 3 

 SPCH 1143 Speech ................................................................... 3 

 HUM  Any class designated as Humanities ..................... 6 
 MATH 1503 Elementary Statistics or 
 MATH  1523  Pre-Calc for Bus-Biol. or 
 MATH  1513 Pre-Calc Eng-Phys-CS .......................................... 3 

SCIENCE met by program 

 CAP 1103 Introduction to Microsoft Office ........................... 3 

 HPER 1012 Wellness and Human Development or 

   Two HPER Activity Courses ................................ 2 

 STSC 1002 Learning Strategies ............................................... 2 
ELECTIVE met by program 

 
Major Field Requirements ................................................................................  25 
        Select from the following:  

 ACCT 2033 Financial Accounting 

 ACCT 2123 Managerial Accounting 

 AGRI 1104 Introduction to Animal Science 

 AGRI 1204 Introduction to Plant and Soil Science 

 AGRI 1303 Introduction to Wildlife and Natural Resource Management  

 AGRI 2123 Agricultural Leadership 

 AGRI  2144 Fundamentals of Soil Science 

 BA 1203 Agricultural Economics 
 BIOL 1114 General Biology or BIOL 1224 General Botany 

   or BIOL 1234 General Zoology 

 CHEM 1114 Introduction to Chemistry or CHEM 1315 General  
   Chemistry I or CHEM 1515 General  
   Chemistry II 
 MATH  1503 Elementary Statistics 
 PSY  1113 General Psychology 
  

Major Field Electives and Support .................................................................... 6 
 Select from the following (or other pre-approved electives): 

 AGRI  1101 Live Animal Evaluation 

 AGRI 1204 Introduction to Plant and Soil Science 

 AGRI 1303 Introduction to Wildlife and Natural Resource Management 
 AGRI 1503 Introduction to Livestock Evaluation  

 AGRI 2123 Agricultural Leadership 
 BA 2113 Macroeconomics 

 BA 2213 Microeconomics 

 BIOL 1224 General Botany 

 BIOL 1234 General Zoology 

 BIOL 2224 Microbiology 

 CHEM 1315 General Chemistry I 

 CHEM 1515 General Chemistry II 

 ENVS 1114 Introduction to Environmental Science 

 MATH  2213 Calculus for Business and Biology 

 PHYS  1214 Earth Science 

 PHYS  2114 General Physics I 
MINIMUM TOTAL HOURS REQUIRED FOR ASSOCIATE DEGREE               62 

Suggested Sequence of Major Field Courses for Agriculture Major 
 

 



Revised September 2021 
Page 1 of 5 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

Request for Program Modification 
 

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education 
 

 
Institution submitting request: Seminole State College 

Contact person: Dr. Linda Goeller 

Title: VPAA 

Phone number and email address: 405-382-9513, l.goeller@sscok.edu 
 

Current title of degree program (Level II): Associate in Science 

Current title of degree program (Level III): Associate in Science in Secondary Education 

State Regent’s three-digit program code:  235 

Degree Granting Academic Unit: Business and Education Division 

With approved options in: A. Click here to enter text. 

  

TYPE OF REQUEST:  Check all appropriate types of changes and complete ONLY the 
appropriate page(s).  Excluding program deletions and suspensions, for modifications to 

be considered for State Regents’ approval, the program must be current in the 5-year program 

review cycle. The Degree Program Review schedule can be found at 
http://www.osrhe.edu/oeis/ProductivityReport/RevParams.aspx 
 
Date next review for the program is due: 2025 

☐ (1) Program Deletion 

☐ (2) Program Suspension 

☐ (3) Change of Program Name and/or Degree Designation 

☐ (4) Option Addition 

☐ (5) Option Deletion 

☐ (6) Option Name Change 

☒ (7) Program Requirement Change 

☐ (8) Other Degree Program Modification (non-substantive) 

☐ (9) Program Reinstatement 

☐ (10) This modification affects a Cooperative Agreement Program 

 

Signature of President: _______________________________________ Date: Click here to 
enter a date.  
 
Date of Governing Board Approval: Click here to enter a date. 
 
 

Complete and return ONLY 

this cover sheet AND the 

appropriate page(s) 

specifying the requested 

modification!  

 

NOTE:  Information not 

included in the requested 

modification may cause a 
delay in processing. 

 

http://www.osrhe.edu/oeis/ProductivityReport/RevParams.aspx


Revised September 2021 
Page 2 of 5 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

 
 

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education 

REQUEST FOR PROGRAM MODIFICATION 
(continued) 

 
Institution submitting request:  Seminole State College 
 
Program name and State Regents’ three-digit program code to be modified:   
Associate in Science in Secondary Education 235 
 
 (7) PROGRAM REQUIREMENT CHANGES 
 
NOTE:  Information not included on the requested action may cause a delay in processing. 
 
 
Select all that apply: 
 
☒ Course requirement change (change in number of core courses, electives, general education, 

etc.  Changes in course prefixes that do not effect content should be reported, but do not 
require approval.) 

 
☐ Degree program requirement change (i.e. prerequisites, minimum GPA for admission or other 

admission criteria changes, graduation criteria change, etc.) 
 
☒ Total credit hours for the degree will NOT change. 
 
☐ Total credit hours for the degree WILL change from 62 to 63 
Explain: Removal of 5 hours of Major Field Requirements at East Central University resulting in 

an increase from 12 to 18 hours in Major Field Requirements.   
 
 
Summary of changes (attach no more than one page if space provided is inadequate, as well as the 
form showing the current and proposed curriculum): 
We will remove EDUC 2012, 2211, 2402, eliminating the Major Field Requirements at East 

Central University portion and adding 5 hours to the Major Field Requirements portion. 
 
Number of new courses being added to course catalog/inventory: 0 
 List new courses being added to course catalog/inventory: 0 
Number of courses being deleted from course catalog/inventory: 0 
 List courses being deleted from course catalog/inventory: 0 
 

Reason for requested action (attach no more than one page if space provided is inadequate): 
Not all students attend East Central University upon graduation at Seminole State College.  An 
option needed to be available for students attending other institutions. Removing the ECU option 
allows students to attend any institution including ECU.  
 
 
 
 

(7) Program 
Requirement Change 



Revised September 2021 
Page 3 of 5 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

 
Will requested change require additional funds from the State Regents? ☒No ☐Yes 
If yes, please specify the number of the additional costs, the source of the funds, and how they will 
be expended (attach no more than one page if space provided is inadequate). 
Click here to enter text. 
 
Will requested change impact an embedded certificate? ☒No ☐Yes 
If yes, please specify the certificate name and State Regents’ three-digit program code.  A 
modification to the impacted embedded certificate(s) must accompany the modification request to 
the main program. Click here to enter text. 
 
Will requested change affect a Cooperative Agreement?   ☒No ☐Yes  
If yes, a Cooperative Agreement Program Modification Form must be completed and submitted. 
 
For undergraduate degree programs only 
 
As part of the broader work of the Mathematics Success Initiative, the Math Pathways Task Force 
has identified four gateway mathematics courses that are suitable general education mathematics 
course options.  These courses, College Algebra/Pre-Calculus, Introduction to Statistics, 
Functions and Modeling, and Quantitative Reasoning, are included on the Course Equivalency 
Project transfer matrix and provide rigorous mathematical content that is more relevant and 
appropriate for specific academic majors. 
 
Please respond to the following questions: 

 
1. Which mathematics course is required as part of the general education requirements? If the 

program allows for multiple gateway mathematics course options, provide a rationale for 
each. 

No change to Math Pathway. 
2. Describe how the mathematics course was selected and how it best meets the needs of the 

program’s students. 
Click here to enter text. 

3. How does this mathematics course articulate with your partner institutions? 
Click here to enter text. 
 

(For more information regarding the gateway mathematics courses, please contact Dr. Rachel 
Bates (405) 225-9168) 

 
 



Revised September 2021 
Page 3 of 5 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

CURRICULAR REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
Please either attach current and proposed degree program requirements or use the tables below to list the current 
requirements in the left column and the proposed requirements in the right column (see appendix A for example). (See 
Attachment) 
 
Indicate the changes clearly.  Note any courses deleted from the course catalog/inventory.  Asterisk any courses 
new to the course catalog/inventory.
 

Current Curriculum 
PREFIX 

AND 
COURSE # 

COURSE TITLE CR. 
HRS. 

EDUC 
2012 

Foundations of Education 2 

EDUC 
2211 

Field Experience 1 

EDUC 
2402 

Survey of Exceptional Children 2 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Total credit hours 62 

Add additional rows as necessary 

 
Proposed Curriculum 

PREFIX 
AND 

COURSE # 

COURSE TITLE CR.  
HRS. 

Delete the 
following: 

  

EDUC 2012 Foundations of Education 2 
EDUC 2211 Field Experience 1 
EDUC 2402 Survey of Exceptional Children 2 
   
      
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Total credit hours 62 
Add additional rows as necessary



Revised September 2021 

State Regents’ Policy 3.4.3 

 



1 

 

2021-22 SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE CATALOG BUSINESS AND EDUCATION DIVISION 

Secondary Education 
Associate in Science 

 
Degree Program Mentor 
For additional information regarding this 
degree, contact the Degree Program Mentor. 

 
Melissa Bryant 

Assistant Professor 
405-382-9742 

m.bryant@sscok.edu 
Division Office: 405-382-9252 

 

Program Objective 
The objective of the Secondary Education 
Associate in Science – Physics Teacher 
Certification Emphasis is to prepare students 
for transfer to a bachelor’s degree granting 
institution to major in physics with a 
concentration in teacher certification. 
 

Requirements for Graduation 
1. Sixty-four designated semester credit hours. 
2. Grade of "C" or better required in all 

Major Field Requirement courses. 
3. Grade Point Average of 2.0 or better. 
4. Fifteen semester credit hours in attendance 

at SSC. 
5. Completion of Graduate Exit Survey. 
 

Transfer Note:  A statewide transfer 
agreement guarantees students transferring to 
an Oklahoma public four-year university 
with an associate in arts or associate in 
science degree will satisfy all freshman and 
sophomore general education requirements at 
the four-year university. 
 
Admission to ECU Teacher Education: 
Students who are considering teacher education 
as a career must have a Graduate Retention 
GPA of 2.5 to enroll in EDUC 2012 
Foundations of Education and EDUC 2211 
Field Experience I.  Students must also 
complete an application for admission to the 
Teacher Education Program.  The application 
process will be completed while enrolled in 
EDUC 2012.  For more information on the ECU 
Teacher Education Program contact Phyllis 
Isaacs, Chair of the Education Department at 
(580) 559-5240.   
 

Teacher Certification Examinations: 
The Oklahoma General Education Test (OGET) 
is the first of a series of certification exams 
required by the teacher certification process in 
the state of Oklahoma. The OGET is typically 
taken during a teacher education candidate’s 
sophomore year. For more information on 
OGET and other required certification 
examinations visit www.ceoe.nesinc.com. 

 
General Education Requirements  42 

 GOV 1113 American National Government ..................................... 3 
 HIST 1483 American History to 1877 or 

 HIST 1493 American History since 1877 .......................................... 3 
 ENG 1113 Composition I ................................................................. 3 
 ENG 1213 Composition II ................................................................ 3 
 SPCH 1143 Speech ............................................................................ 3 
 HUM  Any class designated as Humanities ............................... 6 
 MATH  One Mathematics Course ................................................ 3 

SCIENCE  One Life Science with lab and 
  One Physical Science with lab ........................................ 8 

 CAP 1103 Introduction to Microsoft Office ..................................... 3 
 HPER 1012 Wellness and Human Development ................................ 2 
 STSC 1002 Learning Strategies ......................................................... 2 
 PSY 1113 General Psychology ........................................................ 3 
 

Major Field Requirements ................................................................................  12 
 Select from the following: 

 ANTH 1113 General Anthropology 
 BA 2113 Macroeconomics 
 BA 2213 Microeconomics 
 BIOL 1114 General Biology 
 BIOL 1214 Principles of Biology 
 BIOL 1224 General Botany 
 BIOL 1234 General Zoology 
 BIOL 2114 Human Anatomy 
 CHEM 1315 General Chemistry I 
 CHEM 1515 General Chemistry II 

 ENG 1803 Native American Literature 
 ENG 2103  Fiction Writing 
 ENG 2113 Creative Writing 
 ENG 2123 Introduction to Poetry 
 ENG 2413 Introduction to Literature 
 ENG 2433 World Literature I 
 ENG 2543 British Literature I 
 ENG 2653 British Literature II 
 ENG 2753 American Literature I 

 ENG 2883 American Literature II 
 GEOG 1123 World Regional Geography 

 HIST 1483 American History to 1877 

 HIST 1493 American History since 1877 
 HIST 2223 Early Western Civilization to 1660 
 HIST 2233 Modern Western Civilization since 1660 
 MATH 1503 Elementary Statistics 
 MATH 1513 Pre-Calculus for Eng-Phys-CS 
 MATH 1613 Plane Trigonometry 
 MATH 2215 Calculus and Analytic Geometry I 
 MATH 2424 Calculus and Analytic Geometry II 
 MATH 2434 Calculus and Analytic Geometry III 

 PHYS 1214 Earth Science 
 PHYS 1314 Astronomy 
 PHYS 2114 General Physics I 
 PHYS 2224 General Physics II 
 PHYS 2211 Calculus Based Physics I 
 PHYS 2231 Calculus Based Physics II 

 

Major Field Electives and Support .....................................................................  3 
 PSY 2023 Developmental Psychology 
 

 
 

Major Field Requirements at East Central University ......................................  5 
 EDUC 2012 Foundations of Education 
 EDUC 2211 Field Experience 
 EDUC 2402 Survey of Exceptional Children 

 
MINIMUM TOTAL HOURS REQUIRED FOR ASSOCIATE DEGREE  62 

 

http://www.ceoe.nesinc.com/


2021-22 SSC EVENTS AND EMPLOYEE HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

 
HOLIDAYS 

 DATE            # OF DAYS 

 

JULY 5 INDEPENDENCE DAY OBSERVANCE  (1) 

 

SEPT 6 LABOR DAY       (1) 

 

OCT 14 – 15. FALL BREAK      (2) 

 

NOV 24-27 THANKSGIVING     (3) 

 

DEC 20 – DEC 31 WINTER HOLIDAY BREAK    (10) 

 

JAN 17 MARTIN L. KING, JR.      (1) 

 

FEB 21 WASHINGTON’S BIRTHDAY   (1)  

 

MAR 14-19 SPRING BREAK     (5) 

              

MAY 30 MEMORIAL DAY     (1) 

 

JUNE 20 JUNETEENTH      (1) 

 
 

 

SPECIAL ACADEMIC EVENTS 
                

     

   JAN  7 FACULTY PROF. DEVELOPMENT DAY All employees work.  Professional  

         development sessions will be scheduled. 

 

MAR 24  SSC INTERSCHOLASTIC MEET  Classes cancelled; all employees work. 

Faculty not involved in the meet will be 

assigned a school-related activity by their 

Division Chair. 

 

   MAY 6 COMMENCEMENT (Friday)   This is a work day.  Offices closed to the  

public until 1:30 p.m. faculty,  

Administrators and Professional staff are  

required to participate in commencement  

unless exempted by the president. 

 

March 24, 2022 


	Agenda
	January Minutes
	January Financials
	February Financials
	President's Report
	Lindsey Retirement
	Taylor Resignation
	Natatorium Task Force


	Item A - Softball Complex Retaining Wall
	Item B - Diversity Statement
	Item C - Choate Tenure
	Tenure Policy
	Faculty Tenure Status
	Division Chair Memo
	VPAA Memo
	Choate Summary of Evidence

	Item D, E, F, G - Emeritus 
	Emeritus Policy

	Item H - Goeller Retirement /Newby Resignation
	Consent Agenda
	Program Modification - AS in Agriculture
	Program Modification - AS in Secondary Education
	Revised 21-22 Holiday Schedule




